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WHO SHOULD FILE

e A charitable organization registered to solicit contributions in Wisconsin must file an annual report with the Department
of Financial Institutions — Division of Corporate and Consumer Services.

e A charitable organization should use the form 1952 if:

o The organization received more than $25,000 in contributions or more than $50,000 in contributions from the
county their principle office is located in.

AND
o The organization files an IRS 990, 990EZ or 990-PF. The 990N is not acceptable.
e [fthe organization does not meet the above criteria please use form 1943 or form 308.

e  Please refer to the definitions set forth in Wis. Stat. §. 202.12 when completing registration and report forms.

WHEN TO FILE

e An annual financial report must be filed with the division within 12 months after the organization’s fiscal year-end.

WHAT TO INCLUDE

Form 1952 — Supplement to Financial Report.
IRS 990, 990EZ or 990-PF plus all schedules (except B) and attachments.
An attachment for each question on the form 1952 answered “Yes”.

A full list of the organization’s board of directors, officers, trustees and any principal salaried employees. Please
include the individual’s name, address and title.

A list of states that have issued a license, registration, permit or other formal authorization to the organization to
solicit contributions.

If applicable:
An audited financial statement conducted according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for an
organization that has received $500,000 or more in contribution during its fiscal year.

OR

A reviewed or audited financial statement conducted according to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for an organization which has received $300,000 - $499,999 in contributions during the fiscal year
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#1952 Email:
DFICharitableOrgs@dfi.wisconsin.gov

FINANCIAL REPORT Mailing Address:
PO Box 7879

Madison, WI 53707-7879

| ORGANIZATION INFORMATION - SECTION A

1. Name of charitable organization and any trade names or DBA (doing business as) names the organization

uses.

INTERCHANGE, INC.

- 800

2. WI Charitable Organization Number: 8094

3. Federal Employer Identification Number: 23-7175702

4. Provide the name and contact information of the individual the Department should contact about this form:

First Name: Last Name:
GEORGE NEUREUTHER
Street Address: City: State:
1105 N WAVERLY PLACE MILWAUKEE Wi
Zip Code: Phone: Email:
53202 4145512184 ifomilwaukee@gmail.com
5. Did your organization use a professional fundraiser or fundraising O Yes @ No

counsel during the fiscal year in Wisconsin?

If YES, provide contact information for each fundraiser(s), fund raising counsel(s), or person. Attach additional

pages, if necessary.

Name: l Fundraiser: | Fundraising Counsel:

Street Address: City: State:

Zip: Telephone Number: Does this fundraiser/fundraising counsel/person have custody of contributions at any
time: Yes No

6. Has any of the information your organization previously submitted to O Yes @ No

the division changed? (i.e. name of the organization, address of the
principal office, address of any Wisconsin branch officers, accounting period,

articles, by-laws, etc.)
If YES, attach an explanation and a copy of the amended document.




L FINANCIAL INFORMATION - SECTION B

7. Organization’s Fiscal Year End Date (month, day, 12 31 2022
and year). Enter the accounting period for the mm dd yyyy
following financial information.
Lo CONEIDULIONS ..ottt sttt cs e e e sttt s et eeseeeasaeser e anesseseeennns 1 311.566

("Contribution" means a grant or pledge of money, credit, property, or other thing of any kind or value, except
used clothing or household goods, to a charitable organization or for a charitable purpose. Bequests received
directly from the public and indirect public support, such as contributions received through solicitation campaigns
conducted by federated fundraising agencies like United Way should be included in this amount. "Contribution"
does not include:
° Income from bingo or raffles conducted under ch. 563, Wis. Stats.
e  Government grants
e Bona fide fees, dues, or assessments paid by a member of a charitable organization, except that, if
initial membership in a charitable organization is conferred solely as consideration for making a grant
or pledge of money to the charitable organization in response to a solicitation, that grant or pledge of
money is a contribution.)

2. Other REVENUES .....cooiiiiiiieiiiiiiirieteie ettt ettt et s sttt e s eas st et et eeeae s et e e e e ees s essesess s s eneeeteeeeeeseseteseneaenes 2 703,1 1 5

3. Total Revenue (IiN€ 1 PIUS TNE 2) .....ouiuiiieeeoeeieeeeeee ettt ee et et es e s s e eneeeans 3 1 ,O 1 4,681

4.  Expenses:

a. Expenses Allocated to Program Services .........c.ccoceeveeeiereieeesreienennnn. 4a 854 ; 802

b. Expenses Allocated to Management and General ..........c.ccccoeevivereeienennn, 4b 3 1 . 552

c. Expenses Allocated to FUndraising ..........cccoveeeinmissiesnsesesscossisssossssssassoses 4c 29 ) 899

d.  Expenses Allocated to Payments to Affiliates ............cccccoovcvciiniincne, 4d O

€. TOAl EXPENSES ..vvcvvvvvrrererresseessesssssssesessssesssesss e ssssssssess s 2 1916 : 253
5. Excess or Deficit (line 3 minus 1N 4€) ...t 5 98 ,428
6. Net Assets at Beginning of YEar .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiici it 6 299 y 752
7. Other Changes in Net Assets or Fund Balances (See 990, part XI)......ccoceveviiiiiniiiniieiiieineesieses s 7
8. Net Assets at ENA OF YEAT .vovumsuumivsmsmsmsssevismsmssesssossssssnssssnssssiosssss s ivesssssiesss s sissan sovisssvasasssnisssnnsastessinssesin 8 398180
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[ ATTACHMENTS

Check the box next to the items that are attached to your annual report. Items A., B., and C. are required. Item D. or E.
(or Waiver Application of D. or E.) is required if the contributions received by your organization fall into the described
ranges. (Note: If you are submitting this form with your initial application, DO NOT submit the following attachments.

CEETCcOoOm®
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Submit the attachments cited in the application form instead).

OR

Oe

OR

A.

List of all officers, directors, trustees, and principal salaried employees — The list must include each
individual’s name, address, and title. Please note that “principal salaried employees” refers to the chief
administrative officers of your organization, but does not include the heads of separate departments or
smaller units within the organization. (You can disregard this item if you are attaching an IRS 990 that
already includes the requested information.)

A list of states that have issued a license, registration, permit, or other formal authorization to the
organization to solicit contributions. (You can disregard this item if you are attaching an IRS 990 that
already includes the requested information.)

IRS Form #990, 990EZ, or 990-PF. Do not include Schedule B of the 990.
(Note: If you file an IRS Form 990-N, you cannot use this form. You must complete a Form #308 or
Form #1943 instead.)

Audited Financial Statements if the organization received contributions in excess of $500,000 during
its fiscal year. The financial statements must be prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and be accompanied by the opinion of an independent certified public accountant.

Apply for Waiver of “D. Audited Financial Statements” if (1.) the organization’s contributions were,
during each of the past 3 fiscal years, less than $100,000; and (2.) during the fiscal year for which
the waiver is being requested, the organization received one or more contributions from one contributor
that exceeded $400,000. Include waiver form 1953.

Reviewed Financial Statements if the organization received contributions in excess of $300,000, but
not more than $500,000 during its fiscal year. The financial statements must be prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles by an independent certified public accountant. Audited
financial statements are also acceptable.

Apply for Waiver of “E. Reviewed Financial Statements” if (1.) the organization’s contributions
were, during each of the past 3 fiscal years, less than $100,000; and (2.) during the fiscal year for which
the waiver is being requested, the organization received one or more contributions from one
contributor that exceeded $200,000. Include waiver form 1953.




L CERTIFICATION - SECTION C ]

This document MUST be signed by the chief fiscal officer and another officer. Two different officer
signatures required. Completion of this form is required under Section 202.12, Wisconsin Statutes.

We, the undersigned, state and acknowledge that we are duly constituted officers of this
organization, and that, under penalties of perjury, we have reviewed this report, including
all attachments, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, they are true, correct and

complete in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin applicable to this report.

i )
e Qrge /L’fc"’a () € u ‘(’[7(',:‘ /7
Name (Print‘f
/S —

Signature of Officer

[l 14)23
Date
AND
‘ [ AP A { 7 / | e < A /
S ANDRA A FHIALEERS o x
Name (Brint) o
. = [
LA rIan - [Py e N Fer
Signature of Chief Fiscal Officer Vi
/1] 1+ [R5
Date '

RETURN MATERIALS TO:

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Corporate and Consumer Services

Mailing Address:

WDFI/ Charitable Orgs Section
PO Box 7879

Madison, Wisconsin 53707-7879

E-Mail: DFICharitableOrgs@dfi.wisconsin.gov

This form is required under Section 202.12, Wisconsin Statutes. Refusal to provide this information may result in the denial of
this registration application. Personally identifiable information on this form may be matched against tax information, outstanding
child and family support data and law enforcement agencies. Failure to complete this application completely and accurately may
result in denial or revocation of registration, and any other penalties as provided by law.

This document can be made available in alternate formats upon request to qualifying individuals with disabilities.

Print Clear
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Form 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

made public.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2022

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2022 calendar year, or tax year beginning

, 2022, and ending

, 20

B Check if applicable:

|:| Address change

|:| Name change

|:| Initial return

|:| Final return/terminated
|:| Amended return

|:| Application pending

C Name of organization | NTERCHANGE, | NC.

Doing business as

D Employer identification number

23-7175702

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

1105 N WAVERLY PLACE

Room/suite

E Telephone number

(414) 276- 0988

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

M LWAUKEE, W 53202-3427

G Gross receipts $1, 014, 681.

F Name and address of principal officer:

ALLYSON NEMEC, 1105 N WAVERLY PLACE, M LWAUKEE, W 53202-34

27

| Tax-exempt status:

501(c)(3) [I501(c) ( ) (insert no.) [] 4947(a)(1) or [ ] 527

J  Website:

i nt er changef oodpantry. org

H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? |:| Yes No
H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:| Yes |:| No
If “No,” attach a list. See instructions.

H(c) Group exemption number

K Form of organization: |X| Corporation |:| Trust |:| Association |:| Other

| L Year of formation:

2003| M State of legal domicile: W

Summary
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: Provide energency food assistance to needy individuals in MIwaukee.
8
5
§ 2  Check this box []if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
& | 8 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . 3 14
ﬁ 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 14
2| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2022 (Part V, line 2a) 5 7
2| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . 6 40
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIil, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) . 1,161, 297. 1, 004, 756.
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VI, line 2g) .
% | 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 39. 77.
141 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9¢c, 10c, and 11e) . 9, 848.
12  Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1,161, 336. 1,014, 681.
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) .
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) .o
@ 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 82, 977. 97, 232.
2 | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) e
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 29, 899.
W 147  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . 1, 016, 350. 819, 021.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 1, 099, 327. 916, 253.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 62, 009. 98, 428.
H § Beginning of Current Year End of Year
85120 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 300, 830. 399, 223.
<2 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . o 1, 078. 1, 043.
§§ Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from Ilne 20 299, 752. 398, 180.

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

_ 111/ 13/ 2023
Slgn Signature of officer Date
Here ALLYSON NEMEC, PRESI DENT
Type or print name and title
Pald Print/Type preparer’'s name Preparer’s signature Date Check if | PTIN
Preparer Davi d Krause Davi d Krause 11/ 13/ 2023 | self-employed| PO0064346
Use Only Firm’s name Krause & Associates, SC Fim’sEIN  39- 1810886
Firm'saddress 1214 Bridge Street, Grafton, W 53024 Phone no. (262) 377- 9988
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions Yes [ INo
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. BAA REV 05/17/23 PRO Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) Page 2
m]] Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisParttil . . . . . . . . . . . . . [

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

Provi de energency food assistance to needy individuals in MIwaukee.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form9900or990-E2? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [Yes XINo
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . ... ... [Yes XNo
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 854, 802. including grants of $ 0. ) (Revenue $ 0.)
Provi de_energency food assistance to needy_ individuals in MI|waukee.

The_ pantry_has_one_pernmanent | ocation _and i s _open four_ tines each
week.

4b (Code: ) Expenses$ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses 854, 802.

REV 05/17/23 PRO Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)
gl Checklist of Required Schedules

1

10

11

--

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

21

Page 3

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A .

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions .
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposltlon to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part | .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501( )
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershlp dues
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Ill

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part |

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the organization report an amount in Part X I|ne 21 for escrow or custodlal account I|ab|I|ty, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V . A e .

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts Vi,
VII, VI, IX, or X, as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?7 If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI . . .

Did the organization report an amount for investments— other securities in Part X I|ne 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl . Lo
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl .

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If “Yes,” comp/ete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts XI and Xl

Was the organization included in consolldated mdependent audlted flnanC|aI statements for the tax year’7 If
“Yes,” and if the organization answered “No” to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and Xll is optional

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? .

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaklng,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts | and IV .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV .o

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Ill and IV. .o
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions .
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contrlbutlons on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il . . .. .o .
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII line 93’7

If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Ill .

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H .

If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return'?
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and Il

Yes | No
1 X
2 X
3 X
4 X
5 X
6 X
7 X
8 X
9 X
10 X
11a| X
11b X
11c X
11d X
11e X
11f X
12a| X
12b X
13 X
14a X
14b X
15 X
16 X
17 X
18 X
19 X
20a X
20b
21 X

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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Form 990 (2022) Page 4
gl Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes | No

22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts land Ill . . . . 22 X
23 Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensatlon of the
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 23 x

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line25a . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . . 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? . . . .o . .o 24¢
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstandmg at any time dunng the year'? .o 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part! . . . . . 253 X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part! . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 25b X

26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partll . . . 26 X

27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partlll . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 X

28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L,
Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key emponee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, PartlV . . . . . .o .o . e 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” comp/ete Scheadule L, PartlV . . . . 28b X
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part1V . . . . . . . . .o e e e e 28¢ X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 | X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M . . . . e .o 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatlons’7 If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part!| | 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule N, Part!l . . . . 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regulatlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part| . . . . . 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entlty’7 If “Yes,” complete Schedule R Part i, 1,
orlV,and Part V, line1 . . . . . . e e 34 X
356a Did the organization have a controlled entlty within the meaning of section 512(b)(1 3) e 35a X
b If “Yes” to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transactlon W|th a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 . . . . . 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a reIated organlzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38 | %
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPartV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . [
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a 0
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1c | X

REV 05/17/23 PRO Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

Page 5

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a 7
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b | X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . 3a X
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
6a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
c If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $1 OO OOO and d|d the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . . 6a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contrlbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible? C e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . P e e 7a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file Form 82827 . e e e e e e e e 7c X
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during theyear . . . . . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? | 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f X
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? | 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 . . 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person'7 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a |Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club faC|I|t|es . 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or pald to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) . . . . . .o . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the orgamzatnon f|||ng Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . | 12b |
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans e e e e 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for |ndoor tannlng services durlng the tax year’7 . . 14a X
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” provide an explanation on Schedule O . 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? .. 15 X
If “Yes,” see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? | 16 X
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 49537 17
If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.
Form 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) Page 6

Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No”
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this PartVI . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . 1a 14
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 14
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business reIationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarlly performed by or under the dlrect
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 e
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appomt
one or more members of the governing body? . . . . . . . 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subJect to approval by) members
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken durlng
the year by the following:
a Thegoverning body? . . . . e e 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body’7 e 8b | X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . 10a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures govemlng the actlvmes of such chapters
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b

11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? |11a| X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13 . . . . 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to confhcts? 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe on Schedule O how this wasdone. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . e e e 13 | X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destructlon pollcy? e 14 | X

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a| X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . e e 15b| X

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O See mstructlons
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? . . . . C e 16a e
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written pollcy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed W

18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
[] Own website [] Another’s website Upon request  [] Other (explain on Schedule O)

19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records.
ROB ATER, 1105 N WAVERLY PLACE, M LWAUKEE, W 53202-3427 (414)276-0988
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Form 990 (2022) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl . . . . e
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.

¢ List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of “key employee.”

e |ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

¢ List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.
[] Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

©)
A (B) Position ) ) )
. (do not check more than one .
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week cs|slolzla x| o fn_'om the frqm r_elated compensation
(list any a & 2 |=|& _g & | 9 | organization (W-2/ |organizations (W-2/ frpm lthe
hours for | 5 g_- g g e |2 § (BD 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organlzatlop ar'md
[ r?!iitet? . %i g' .§ 3 § = 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
dotted line) 2 % §
° g
(1) GEORGE NEUREUTHER 40. 00
EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR X 51, 000. 0. 0.
(2) ALLYSON NEMEC 3.00
PRESI DENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(3) SANDRA HAL GERSON 3.00
VI CE PRESI DENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(4) BETH BRUCH 3.00
SECRETARY X X 0. 0. 0.
(5) ROBERT ATER 3.00
TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
(6) PASTOR LI SA BATES FRAO LAND 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(7) DAWN CHAPMAN 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(8) LEE COPPERNCL L 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(9) JOY GALLMON 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(10) PASTOR LYNN HI NES- LEVY 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(11) JACK JUGHES 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(12) LI N MCCRACKEN 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(13) TI M OTTMAN 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(14) MARK RUEDI NGER 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.

REV 05/17/23 PRO Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

Page 8

e AYIN Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

©
A (8) Position © ) G]
(do not check more than one
Name and title Average | pox, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week o == ° - from the from related compensation
(list any a 3_ i 8 5 3 % 9 | organization (W-2/|organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for 3 g_ F18 | % g (BD 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related |25 |5 | 3 ?B I 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations g o 3 é g
below 6|2 3 5
dotted line) g|a 2
[0} [V
° g
(15) ROBERT SCHULTZ 3.00
DI RECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(16)
7
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
1b Subtotal 51, 000. 0. 0.
¢ Total from contlnuatlon sheets to Part VII Sectlon A
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) . . 51, 000. 0. 0.
2  Total number of individuals (including but not I|m|ted to those Ilsted above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . 3 e
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensatlon from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? I/f “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual . 4 X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B) (©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization
REV 05/17/23 PRO Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

Clg'lll] Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .

Page 9

O

(A)
Total revenue

(B)
Related or exempt
function revenue

(C)
Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512-514

Contributions, Gifts, Grants,

and Other Similar Amounts

-0 Q0 T 9o

Federated campaigns .

1a

Membership dues

1b

Fundraising events .

1c

Related organizations .

1d

Government grants (contrlbutlons)

1e

93, 447.

All other contributions, gifts, grants,
and similar amounts not included above

1f

911, 309.

Noncash contributions included in
lines 1a—1f .

19

$ 599, 743.

Total. Add lines 1a-1f .

1, 004, 756.

Program Service

Revenue

2a

Q 0 Q0T

Business Code

All other program service revenue .
Total. Add lines 2a-2f .

Other Revenue

10a

=3

Investment income (including d|V|dends

other similar amounts) .

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds

Royalties

interest, and

77.

77.

(i) Real

(i) Personal

Gross rents 6a

Less: rental expenses | 6b

Rental income or (loss) | 6¢

Net rental income or (loss)

Gross amount from (i) Securit

ies

(ii) Other

sales of assets

other than inventory | 74

Less: cost or other basis

and sales expenses 7b

Gain or (loss) . 7c

Net gain or (loss)

Gross income from fundraising
events (notincluding$

of contributions reported on line
1c). See Part IV, line 18

Less: direct expenses .
Net income or (loss) from fundralsm

Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19

Less: direct expenses .

Net income or (loss) from gaming actlvmes .

Gross sales of inventory, less

returns and allowances
Less: cost of goods sold

Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory .

8a

8b

g eve

nts

9a

9b

10a

10b

Miscellaneous

Revenue

11a

® Q0

OTHER

Business Code

999999

9, 848.

9, 848.

All other revenue .
Total. Add lines 11a-11d .

9, 848.

12

Total revenue. See instructions

1,014, 681.

9, 848.

77.

REV 05/17/23 PRO

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

a4V @ Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Page 10

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX .o [l
Do not include amounts rep orted on lines 6b' 7b’ Total éﬁr))enses Prograsr?)service Manag(-(:%)ent and Funcsll?a)ising
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 .
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4  Benefits paid to or for members .
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees . 50, 000. 20, 000. 5, 000. 25, 000.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .
7  Other salaries and wages 40, 630. 26, 057. 14, 573. 0.
8 Pension plan accruals and contrlbutlons (|nclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9  Other employee benefits .
10 Payroll taxes . . 6, 602. 3, 355. 1, 426. 1, 821.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees)
a Management
b Legal
¢ Accounting 2, 964. 439, 2, 287. 238.
d Lobbying . .
e Professional fundra|smg services. See Part IV Ime 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 119 expenses on Schedule O.) 2, 750. 0. 2, 750. 0.
12  Advertising and promotion
13  Office expenses 8, 376. 4, 807. 3,414. 155.
14  Information technology
15 Royalties .
16  Occupancy 8, 400. 4, 269. 1, 814. 2, 317.
17  Travel .
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest . .
21 Payments to afflllates .
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon 10, 787. 10, 787. 0. 0.
23 Insurance . e e e 913. 464, 197. 252,
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a Food and hygi ene products 776, 211. 776, 211. 0. 0.
b Tel ephone 420. 213. 91. 116.
c Vehicle 5, 554. 5, 554. 0. 0.
d Mnor equipnment and IT 2, 646. 2, 646. 0. 0.
e All other expenses
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 916, 253. 854, 802. 31, 552 29, 899.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here [] if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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Form 990 (2022)

Balance Sheet

Page 11

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .o [l
(A) (8)
Beginning of year End of year
1  Cash—non-interest-bearing .o 39, 060. | 1 111, 802.
2  Savings and temporary cash investments . 183,414.| 2 73, 490.
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 26, 710.| 3 98, 990.
4  Accounts receivable, net . 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former offlcer d|rector
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as deflned
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 6
2| 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
§ 8 Inventories for sale or use 25,626.| 8 21, 466.
< | 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 80.| 9 167.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of ScheduleD . . . [10a 119, 106.
Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . [10b 25, 798. 25, 940. |10c 93, 308.
11 Investments—publicly traded securities . 11
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14  Intangible assets . 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, I|ne 11 . . 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal Ilne 33) 300, 830. | 16 399, 223.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 1,078. | 17 1, 043.
18 Grants payable . 18
19  Deferred revenue . 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . 20
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
4 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
£ trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 29
3|23  Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24  Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D . . 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 1,078.| 26 1, 043.
2 Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here E
e and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
T‘: 27 Net assets without donor restrictions 273,042. | 27 378, 956.
% 28 Net assets with donor restrictions 26, 710.| 28 19, 224.
S Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958 check here |:|
l-l; and complete lines 29 through 33.
: 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . . 29
“8,'3 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
2 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
2 32 Total net assets or fund balances . .o 299, 752.| 32 398, 180.
Z |33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . 300, 830. | 33 399, 223.

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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Form 990 (2022)
Ta® (l Reconciliation of Net Assets

Page 12

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

O

CQOWOONOOOGHA~WN-=

—h

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) .

1,014, 681.

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)

916, 253.

Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1

98, 428.

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X I|ne 32 column (A)) -

299, 752.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Donated services and use of facilities

Investment expenses .

Prior period adjustments .

OQO|IN(O(GTHAWIN|=],

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explaln on Schedule O)

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X Ilne
32, column (B)) .

iy
o

398, 180.

g @ U Financial Statements and Reportlng

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII .

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: []Cash Accrual  []Other

Yes

No

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.

Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[]Separate basis [ ] Consolidated basis [ ] Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F?

If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts'7 If the organlzatlon d|d not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits .

2a

2b

2c

3a

3b
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SCHEDULE A . . . OMB No. 1545-0047

00 Public Charity Status and Public Support

rm

(Fo ) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2 @ 22
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

| NTERCHANGE, | NC. 23-7175702

Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 [] A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [ A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

3 [ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [] A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital’s name, city, and state:

5 [] An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

6 [ A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

8 [] A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

9 [an agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 [] An organization that normally receives (1) more than 3313% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33'3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 [] An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a [ Type l. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [ Type Il A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c¢ [ Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [ Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . e e e |:|

g Provide the following information about the supported organlzatlon( ).

(i) Name of supported organization (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization | (iv) Is the organization | (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 |listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)

Yes No

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

(E)

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. paA Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Page 2

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

1

6

(a) 2018

(b) 2019

(c) 2020

(d) 2021

(e) 2022

(f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”)

394, 277.

607, 737.

1, 055, 529.

1,134, 176.

1, 004, 756.

4, 196, 475.

Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

394, 277.

607, 737.

1, 055, 529.

1,134, 176.

1, 004, 756.

4, 196, 475.

The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) .

Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4

4, 196, 475.

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

7
8

10

11
12

13

(a) 2018

(b) 2019

(c) 2020

(d) 2021

(e) 2022

(f) Total

Amounts from line 4

394, 277.

607, 737.

1, 055, 529.

1,134, 176.

1, 004, 756.

4,196, 475.

Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources .

74.

1,181.

4,419.

39.

77.

5, 790.

Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on .

Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL.) .

835.

2, 540.

9, 848.

13, 223.

Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

4, 215, 488.

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions)

First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth or flfth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here

12 |

0.

O

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14
15
16a

b

17a

18

Public support percentage for 2022 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f))

Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 .
331/3% support test—2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 13 and I|ne 14 is 3313% or more, check this

box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .
331/3% support test—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and I|ne 15 is 331/3% or more, check

this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .

14

99.55%

15

99.73%

O

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

organization .

10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

organization .

O

Private foundation. If the organlzatlon d|d not check a box on I|ne 13 16a 16b 17a or 17b check th|s box and see

instructions

O

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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ZXl Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

Page 3

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

1

2

7a

c
8

Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)

Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose .

Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .
Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

Add lines 7a and 7b
Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line 6.) .

(a) 2018

(b) 2019

(c) 2020

(d) 2021

(e) 2022 (f) Total

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

9
10a

11

12

13

14

Amounts from line 6 A
Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources .

Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .

Add lines 10a and 10b

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on
Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL.) . .o
Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and 12.)

(a) 2018

(b) 2019

(c) 2020

(d) 2021

(e) 2022 (f) Total

First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here O
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2022 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 %
16  Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part lll, line 15 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2022 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 . 18 %
19a 33'3% support tests—2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and I|ne 15 is more than 33'3%, and line
17 is not more than 33'3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ]
b 33'3% support tests—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33'3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33'/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ]
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions [l

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Page 4

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

3a

4a

ba

9a

10a

Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3c below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)2)(B)
purposes.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization’s organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type lll non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes

No

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

ba

5b

5c

9a

9b

9¢c

10a

10b
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2T\ Supporting Organizations (continued)

11
a

b
c

Page 5

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?

A family member of a person described on line 11a above?
A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part VI.

Yes

No

11a

11b

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Yes

No

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Yes

No

3

Section E. Type Ill Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1
a
b

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

[] The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
[] The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

¢ [ The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

2
a

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI.

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes

No

2a

2b

3a

3b

REV 05/17/23 PRO Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Page 6

Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 [ Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A—Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

AQ|D|OIN|(=

O G|H~|WIN|=

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions)

7

Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B—Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

1d

O Q|0 |(T|®

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):

N

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

N

(]

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

w

A

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

N|O|O

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

®O|N|O (G

Section C—Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

AQ|D|OIN|(=

OO~ |WIN|=

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

6

[] Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization

(see instructions).

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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Page 7

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D—Distributions

Current Year

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

-

1
2

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required—provide details in Part VI)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

NoOo|o|h~|OIN

XN |G, |W

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

(orovide details in Part VI). See instructions.

(o)

©

Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E—Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

0

Excess Distributions

(ii)
Underdistributions
Pre-2022

(iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2022

Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2022
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

(]

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2022

From 2017

From 2018

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2022 distributable amount

Carryover from 2017 not applied (see instructions)

—=|T|Q (=0 a0 |lT|v

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

»

Distributions for 2022 from
Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

=3

Applied to 2022 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2022, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2022. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2023. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2019 .

Excess from 2020 .

Excess from 2021

O Q0|T|D

Excess from 2022

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
lll, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c¢; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

Pt Il Ln 10: Gther Incone Part |1, Line 10 Description: M SCELLANEQUS 2018:

835. 2019: 2540. 2020: 0. 2021: 0. 2022: 9848.

REV 05/17/23 PRO Schedule A (Form 990) 2022



(SI:C"'E%;’(')-)E D Supplemental Financial Statements |_ome No. 15450047
orm
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, 2 @22
PartV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open tO_ Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
| NTERCHANGE, | NC. 23-7175702

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

AL ON =

(]

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year . e
Aggregate value of contributions to (during year) .
Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
Aggregate value at end of year .

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? . . . . . . ] Yes [ No
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose

conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . o . L 0L L. [ Yes [ No

Part i Conservation Easements.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

o0 T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
[[] Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education)  [] Preservation of a historically important land area
[] Protection of natural habitat [] Preservation of a certified historic structure

[] Preservation of open space
Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . e 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure mcluded in(@ . . 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after July 25, 2006, and not ona

historic structure listed in the National Register . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |9g

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the
tax year

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . ] Yes [ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170(h)(4)B)(i)? . . . . . .o []Yes [] No
In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservatlon easements in |ts revenue and expense statement and

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

Part lll Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xlll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:

() Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . §
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . .o $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, hlstorlcal treasures or other S|m|Iar assets for flnanC|aI gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIll, line1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . %

b Assetsincluded in Form990,PartX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... %

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 Page 2
m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

a
b
c

4

5

Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):

[] Public exhibition d [ Loan or exchange program
[] Scholarly research e [ Other
[] Preservation for future generations

Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
Xill.

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . []Yes [] No

V'  Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? . . . . e . C e ] Yes [ No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the foIIowmg table:
Amount
¢ Beginningbalance . . . . . . . . . . . L oL L oL L0 1c
d Additions during theyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. 1d
e Distributions during theyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1e
f Ending balance . . . 1f
2a Did the organization mclude an amount on Form 990 Part X Irne 21 for escrow or custodlal account liability? [] Yes [] No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xlll. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIll . . . . ]
Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back

b

Beginning of year balance
Contributions .

Net investment earnings, galns and
losses . o .
Grants or scholarships

Other expenditures for facilities and
programs . .o
Administrative expenses .

End of year balance .
Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

Board designated or quasi-endowment %
Permanent endowment %
Term endowment %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes| No
(i) Unrelated organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... 3al(i)

(i) Related organizations . . . e e 3al(ii)

If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organlzatlons Ilsted as requwed on Schedule R’? e e 3b

Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis | (b) Cost or other basis (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) (other) depreciation
1a Land

b Buildings . . .

¢ Leasehold |mprovements .o

d Equipment . . . . . . . . . 0. 119, 106. 25, 798. 93, 308.

e Other
Total. Add lines 1athrough 1e (Co/umn (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.) . . . . . 93, 308.
BAA REV 05/17/23 PRO Schedule D (Form 990) 2022



Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 Page 3
g A'/[l  Investments—Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives .
(2) Closely held equity interests .
(3) Other

A

B)

©)

D)

E)

)

(©)

H)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.)
Investments —Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
3)
4
(5)
(6)
(7)
8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.)
Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.) .
Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.
1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

N

@S

=

Gl

&)

—
N

8

—

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
9)

@

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.) . .
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIll, provide the text of the footnote to the organlzatlon s flnanC|aI statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIll . []

Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Page 4

1  Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 1 1, 015, 881.
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a

b Donated services and use of facilities 2b 1, 200.

¢ Recoveries of prior year grants . 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIll.) . 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 2e 1, 200.
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 . 3 1,014, 681.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII I|ne 12 but not on Ilne 1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . 4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (Th/s must equal Form 990 Partl l/ne 12) . 5 1,014, 681.

Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 917, 453.
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities 2a 1, 200.

b Prior year adjustments 2b

¢ Otherlosses . 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 2e 1, 200.
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 . 3 916, 253.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, I|ne 25 but not on Ilne 1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a

b Other (Describe in Part XIII.) . 4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c (Th/s must equal Form 990 Partl //ne 18 ) 5 916, 253.

Il Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XIl, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

BAA

REV 05/17/23 PRO
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=PIl  Supplemental Information (continued)
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SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) 2 @22
Complete if the organizations answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990.
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
| NTERCHANGE, | NC. 23-7175702
Types of Property
a b © d
Chgc)k if | Number of c(or)1tributions or Zr?%%ist}; ?ggé':&;t'gr? Method of(d)etermining
applicable items contributed Form 990, Part VIIl, line 1g noncash contribution amounts

1 Art—Works of art

2  Art—Historical treasures .

3 Art—Fractional interests .

4  Books and publications

5 Clothing and household

goods . . . . . .

6 Cars and other vehicles

7 Boats and planes

8 Intellectual property

9  Securities—Publicly traded . .

10  Securities—Closely held stock .
11 Securities—Partnership, LLC,

or trust interests

12  Securities—Miscellaneous

13  Qualified conservation
contribution—Historic
structures . .

14  Qualified conservation
contribution—Other

15 Real estate—Residential .

16 Real estate—Commercial

17 Real estate—Other.

18 Collectibles L.

19 Foodinventory . . . . . . 318721 599, 743. [FAI R MARKET VALUE

20 Drugs and medical supplies .

21  Taxidermy .

22  Historical artifacts .

23  Scientific specimens

24  Archeological artifacts

25  Other ( )
26  Other ( )
27  Other ( )
28  Other ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part V, Donee Acknowledgement . . . . . 29
Yes| No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through
28, that it must hold for at least 3 years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn’t required to be
used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30a e
b If “Yes,” describe the arrangement in Part Il
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard
contributions? . . . . . . L L L L Lo e e e 31 | X
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
contributions? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . .. .. 32a X
b If “Yes,” describe in Part Il.
33  If the organization didn’t report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,
describe in Part Il

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. BAA REabsN@25 12T J Schedule M (Form 990) 2022



Schedule M (Form 990) 2022 Page 2

Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part |, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether
the organization is reporting in Part |, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received,
or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

REV 05/17/23 PRO Schedule M (Form 990) 2022



SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2 @ 22
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open tq Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspectlon

Name of the organization Employer identification number

I NTERCHANGE, | NC. 23-7175702

Pt VI, Line 11b: The board of directors reviews and approves the 990 prior to

filing with the IRS.

Pt VI, Line 12c: Al board nenbers review and sign the conflict of intersest

pol i cy

Pt VI, Line 15a: The volunteer board of directors approves the executive director's

conpensati on and wages for all other enployees. Board nmenbers serve as vol unteers

and are not conpensat ed.

Pt VI, Line 15b: The volunteer board of directors approves the executive director's

conpensation and wages for all other enployees. Board nenbers serve as vol unteers

and are not

Pt VI, Line 19: Al docunments are avail abl e upon request during normal business

hour s.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. BAA Schedule O (Form 990) 2022
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JKKRAUSE & ASSOCIATES, S.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

1214 BRIDGE STREET TELEPHONE: (262) 377-9988
P.O. Box 368 FAX: (262) 377-9617
GRAFTON, WiScoNsIN 53024

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Interchange, Inc.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Interchange, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2022

and 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Interchange, Inc. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of Interchange, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Interchange, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that
the financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable
user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Interchange, Inc.'s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Interchange, Inc.'s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

/JW' 9»@0&9& Jie.

Krause & Associates, SC
Grafton, Wisconsin
November 13, 2023



INTERCHANGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 185292 § 222,474
Contributions receivable 19,224 26,710
Grants receivables 79,766 -
Inventory, donated 21,466 25,626
Prepaid expenses 167 80
305915 274,890
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Equipment 65,285 40,951
Vehicles 53,821 19,318
119,106 60,269
Less accumulated depreciation (25.798) (34.329)
Property and equipment, net 93.308 25.940
TOTAL ASSETS $ 399,223 § 300,830
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,043 § 1,078
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes - -
Total liabilities 1,043 1,078
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 378,956 273,042
With donor restrictions 19,224 26,710
Total net assets 398.180 299,752
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 399,223 § 300,830

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
Without Donor ~ With Donor Without Donor With Donor
REVENUE AND SUPPORT Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total
Contributions and grants $ 385,789 $ 19,224 $ 405,013 $ 223,391 $ 26,710 $ 250,101
In-kind contributions
Donations of food 599,743 - 599,743 911,196 - 911,196
Space 1,200 - 1,200 1,200 - 1,200
Miscellaneous 9,848 - 9,848 - - -
Interest income 77 - 77 39 - 39
Net assets released from restrictions 26,710 (26,710) - 13,825 (13,825) -
Total revenue and support 1,023,367 (7,486) 1,015,881 1,149,651 12,885 1,162,536
EXPENSES
Program:
Pantry operations 856,002 - 856,002 1,072,253 - 1,072,253
Supporting services:
Administration 31,552 - 31,552 22,779 - 22,779
Fundraising 29,899 - 29,899 5,495 - 5,495
Total expenses 917,453 - 917,453 1,100,527 - 1,100,527
Changes in net assets 105,914 (7,486) 98,428 49,124 12,885 62,009
Beginning net assets 273,042 26,710 299,752 223918 13,825 237,743
Ending net assets $ 378,956 $ 19224 $ 398,180 $ 273,042 $ 26,710 $ 299,752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
Program Supporting services Program Supporting services
Pantry Pantry
Operations Administration  Fundraising Total Operations Administration Fundraising Total

Depreciation $ 10,787 $ - $ - $ 10,787 $ 7,800 $ - $ - $ 7,800
Equipment 2,646 - - 2,646 705 - - 705
Food and hygiene products 776,211 - - 776,211 957,461 - - 957,461
Insurance 464 197 252 913 1,052 168 65 1,285
Occupancy 5,469 1,814 2,317 9,600 19,965 3,004 1,161 24,130
Payroll Expenses:

Salaries and wages 46,057 19,573 25,000 90,630 61,844 9,900 3,825 75,569

Payroll taxes 3,355 1,426 1,821 6,602 6,063 970 375 7,408
Professional fees 439 5,037 238 5,714 723 7,366 45 8,134
Supplies and other 4,807 3,414 155 8,376 8,406 1,308 - 9,714
Telephone 213 91 116 420 393 63 24 480
Vehicle 5,554 - - 5,554 7,841 - - 7,841

Total Expenses $ 856,002 $§ 31,552 $ 29,899 § 917453 $ 1,072,253 $ 22,779 $ 5,495 $ 1,100,527

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Changes in net assets $ 98,428 $ 62,009
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation expense 10,787 7,800
(Increase) decrease in in-kind food inventory 4,160 (716)
Investment income - (21)
(Increase) decrease in contributions receivable 7,486 (12,885)
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (79,766) -
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (87) 331
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (353 1,078
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll taxes - (5.507)

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities 40,973 52,089
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease in certificate of deposit - 41,740
Proceeds from investments - -
Additions to property and equipment (78.155) (18.569)
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities (78.155) 23.171
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (37,182) 75,260
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 222.474 147,214
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 185292 § 222.474

Supplemental cash flow information:

In-kind contributions received $ 600943 $ 912,396

No cash paid for interest or income taxes during 2022 and 2021.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies consistently applied in the
preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows.

1. Organization and business activity

Interchange, Inc. (Interchange) is a Wisconsin non-stock nonprofit corporation,
whose primary purpose is to provide emergency food assistance to needy individuals
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The pantry has one permanent location, and is open four
times each week. In addition, deliveries of food are made each month to four senior
and low-income housing facilities in the pantry’s catchment area.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Interchange considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities
of three months or less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-
term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

3. Contributions and Contributions and Grants Receivable

Interchange records unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected
within one year at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be
collected in future years are initially recorded at fair value using present value
techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed to reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the statements of
activities. Interchange determines the allowance for uncollectable promises to give
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review
of subsequent collections. Promises to give are written off when deemed
uncollectable. Interchange has no contributions receivable at December 31, 2022 and
2021.

4. Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses represent disbursements paid in advance for the subsequent
fiscal year.

5. Inventory

Inventory consists of food and is stated at donated value. Any purchased inventory is
stated at the lower of cost or market value.



INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
6. Investments

Interchange records investment purchases at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the
date of donation. Thereafter, investments are reported at their fair values in the
statements of financial position. Investment income is reported in the statements of
activities and consists of interest and dividend income, unrealized capital gains and
losses, and realized gains and losses less external investment expenses.

Investment securities, in general, are inherently subject to various risks, such as
interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated
with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes in the value
of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could
materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of financial position and
statements of activities.

7. Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or fair market value if donated.
Interchange’s policy is to capitalize all tangible assets which separately or in the
aggregate have an acquisition cost of $500 or greater. Major additions and
improvements are capitalized. Property and equipment are depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method. When assets are
sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation or amortization are
removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the
statements of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or
extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed currently. Depreciation
expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $10,787 and $7,800,
respectively.

8. Net assets

Interchange follows the accrual method of accounting wherein revenues and expenses
are recorded in the period earned or incurred. Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses
are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as
follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.



INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED
&. Net assets - continued

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-)
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such
as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor.
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates
that resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Interchange reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets
without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in
which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported
as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

9. Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional
promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional
promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a
right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have
been substantially met.

During 2022, Interchange was awarded a cost-reimbursable state grant, which are
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when we
have incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions.
Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as
refundable advances in the statements of financial position.

Consequently, as of December 31, 2022, cost reimbursed grants totaling $198,186
have not been recognized in the accompanying financial statements because
qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred. No amounts have been received

in advance under the grant.

As of December 31, 2021, Interchange has no conditional contributions.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

10.

1.

12.

13.

Donated services and in-kind contributions

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our program services,
administration, and fundraising and development activities; however, the financial
statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services because they do not
meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles.
Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Interchange
records donated professional services at the respective fair values of the services
received (see Note E).

Allocation of functional expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation
on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated
include occupancy, depreciation, salaries and wages, benefits, payroll taxes,
professional services, office expenses, supplies, insurance, and other, which are
allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and those
differences could be material.

Income taxes

Interchange is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income
pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Interchange evaluates it tax positions and
assesses their uncertainty, if any, through review and application of various sources of
tax authority including statures, regulations, rulings, court cases and widely held
administrative practices.

Interchange’s informational returns are subject to examination by the IRS, generally
for three years after they were filed. Management believes that no uncertain tax
positions exist for Interchange at December 31, 2022 and 2021. Interchange has not
incurred any interest or penalties for income taxes for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

14. New Accounting Standards

15.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which
supersedes existing guidance in Topic 840, Leases. The FASB subsequently issued
the following additional ASUs, which amend and clarify Topic 842: ASU 2018-01,
Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842; ASU 2018-10,
Codification Improvements to Topic 8§42, Leases;, ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 8§42):
Targeted Improvements;, ASU 2018-20, Narrow-scope Improvements for Lessors;
ASU 2019-01, Leases (Topic 842): Codification Improvements; ASU 2020-05,
Leases (Topic 842): Lessors—Certain Leases with Variable Lease Payments; and
ASU 2021-09, Leases (Topic 842).: Discount Rate for Lessees That Are Not Public
Business Entities. Topic 842 amends both lessor and lessee accounting with the most
significant change being the requirement for lessees to recognize right-of-use (ROU)
assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for operating leases.

Interchange adopted the leasing standards effective January 1, 2022, using the
modified retrospective approach with January 1, 2022 as the initial date of
application. Interchange elected to use all available practical expedients provided in
the transition guidance. These allowed Interchange to not reassess the identification,
classification and initial direct costs of lessor agreements and to use hindsight in
lessee and lessor agreements for determining lease term and right-of-use asset
impairment. Topic 842 had no effect to beginning net assets or statement of financial
position accounts related to lessor accounting. Interchange has elected the short-term
exemption for all leases with a term of 12 months or less for both existing and
ongoing leases to not recognize the asset and liability for these leases. Lease
payments for short-term leases are recognized on a short-term basis. See note F.

Subsequent events
Management has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure in the

financial statements through November 13, 2023, which is the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

B — LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other

restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the statements of financial position date
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, comprise the following:

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $ 185292 § 222,474
Contributions receivable 19,224 26,710
Grants receivable 79,766 -

$ 284282 § 249,184

As part of its liquidity plan, Interchange invests cash in excess of daily requirements in
short-term money market funds.

C — CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, contributions and grants receivable consist of
outstanding donations and grants awarded to Interchange and total $19,224 and $79,766
and $26,710 and $0, respectively. Interchange considers all contributions and grants
receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no provision for doubtful accounts is
included. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be charged to operations when that
determination is made. All contributions and grants receivable amounts are due within
12 months of the year end.

D - NET ASSETS

Contributions received are recorded as temporarily restricted net assets depending on the
existence and or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. As restrictions are met and
funds expended, assets are released from restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions
are restricted for the following purposes as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Subject to passage of time § 19224 § 26,710

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by the
donors as follows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Passage of time § 26710 § 13,825
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

E — DONATED FACILITIES, SERVICES AND PERSONAL PROPERTY

Interchange receives and distributes food and personal hygiene items. For the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, Interchange received approximately 318,721 and
509,048 pounds of food respectively. Interchange bases the per pound value on a study
performed by Feeding America which was $1.92 and $1.79 per pound for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 and totaled approximately $599,743 and $911,196,
respectively. The estimated value of this food is recorded as both revenue and expense at
the time of receipt and is valued at fair market value on the date of the donation.

Interchange also received use of designated space at Immanuel Church at no cost.
Interchange recognized $1,200 of in-kind donations of rent in 2022 and 2021.

The approximate fair value of donated goods and services for the years ended December
31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Donated food $ 599,743 $ 911,196
Pantry space 1,200 1,200
Total $ 600943 § 912,396

A number of unpaid volunteers have made significant contributions of their time in
conjunction with Interchange’s programs and services. The value of this contributed time
is not included in these financial statements, as they do not meet the criteria for
recognition.

F - LEASE COMMITMENTS

As noted in footnote E, Interchange receives the use of donated space at Immanuel
Church. Interchange recognized $1,200 of in-kind donations of rent in 2022 and 2021.

Interchange utilizes space at Village Church. In lieu of rental payments, Interchange
pays a portion of the utilities, as specified in an annual building usage agreement. The
building usage agreement is for a period of 12 months, through December 31, 2022.
Interchange paid $8,400 and $11,250 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. In addition, for the year ended December 31, 2021, Interchange contributed
an additional $11,680 toward common maintenance and repair expenses. Subsequent to
year end, the building usage agreement for the year ended December 31, 2023 was
signed. Required payments in 2023 total $11,370.

Occupancy expenses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to
$9,600 and $24,130, respectively.
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INTERCHANGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

G — CONCENTRATIONS
As noted in footnote E, Interchange receives a substantial amount of donated food. The

majority of the donated food is received from one source. Without this donated food, the
amount of food distributed to the community would be greatly impacted.
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